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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Prime Focus
Technologies Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at March 31, 2024, and their consolidated loss, their consolidated total
comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (*SAs") specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’'s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred
to in the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the board’s report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

e Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries
audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so,
place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial
statements audited by the other auditors.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in
equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of
the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board
of Directors either intend to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of six subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 38,300.86 lakh as at March 31, 2024, total revenues of Rs, 19,107.25 lakh
and net cash outflow amounting to Rs. 774.56 lakh for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of
subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
the reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries
referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Group,
including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors, except in relation to compliance with the
requirements of audit trail, refer paragraph (i)(vi) below.
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c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent
as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and
the report of the statutory auditors of the subsidiary company incorporated in India,
none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports
of the Parent and subsidiary company incorporated in India. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the statutory auditors report of the subsidiary company incorporated in India, there
was no remuneration paid to the any directors during the year in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i) the Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact the
consolidated financial position of the Group.

i) the Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary company
incorporated in India.
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iv) (a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiary which are

v)

vi)

companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditor of
such subsidiary that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent or the
subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Parent or the subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of
such subsidiary that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Parent or the subsidiary from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent
or the subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that
performed by the auditor of the subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused
us or the other auditor to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

The Parent and its subsidiary, which are companies incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid
any dividend during the year and have not proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks and based on the other
auditor report of its subsidiary company incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, the Parent Company and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India have used accounting software for
maintaining their respective books of account for the year ended March 31,
2024, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software except that:
a. the audit trail feature was not enabled for changes made by certain
privileged / administrative users and
b. the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level to log direct
data changes.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
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2. With respect to the matters specified in Clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of
the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the audit report under section 143 issued by us
and the auditor of the subsidiary company included in the consolidated financial
statements, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that CARO is
applicable only to the Parent and not to any other company included in the consolidated
financial statements. We have not reported any qualification or adverse remark in the
CARO of the Parent except for the following:

Name of the | CIN Nature of Clause Number of CARO |
company relationship | report with qualification or |
|

| adverse remark

Prime Focus | U72200MH2008PLC179850 | Parent | (ix)(d) - On an overall
Technologies examination of the financial
Limited statements of the Company,

funds raised on short-term |
basis aggregating Rs. |
35,295.79 Lakh have been

used for long-term purposes |
by the Company |

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 117364W/W-100739

(buchashes

Varsha A. Fadte
Partner
Membership No. 103999
UDIN: 24103999BKENFI4325
Panaji, Goa, May 29, 2024
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as at
and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of Prime Focus Technologies Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “Parent”) and its subsidiary company, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company'’s policies,
the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are
companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors of the subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference
to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financiai control
with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditor referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements established by the respective companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated
in India, is based solely on the corresponding report of the auditor of such company
incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 117364W/W-100739

(hyohashes

Varsha A. Fadte
Partner
Membership No. 103999
UDIN: 24103999BKENFI4325
Panaji, Goa, May 29, 2024



Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2024

(Rs in lakh)

ASSETS Notes As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
1.Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 5,431.74 5,759.26
(b) Capital work-in-progress 236,03 15.81
(¢) Goodwill Sa 13,973.80 13,717.62
(d)Otherintangible assels 5 29,843.73 30,126.80
(e)Right-to-use assets 6 5,451.27 6,827.29
(f) Intangible assets underdevelopment 34 779.19 2,143.93
(g) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 9 636.09 628.82
(h) Income taxassets (net) 980.46 693.40
(i) Other non-current assets 10 211.44 9.72
Total Non-current assets 57.543.75 59,922.65
2. Current assets
(a) Financialassets
(i) Trade receivables 7 6,350.76 7,516.56
(ii)) Cash and cash equivalents 8a 1,586.42 1,991.21
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8b 291.06 359.06
(iv) Other financial assets 9 9,137.61 3,689.30
(b) Othercurrent assets 10 2,695.90 2,434.12
Total Current assets 20,061.75 15.990.25
Total assets 77.605.50 75.912.90
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 218.76 218.76
(b)Oltherequity 12 10,871.76 13.549.02
Total Equity 11,090.52 13,767.78
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 623.13 872.38
(if) Lease liabilities 31 4,403.33 5,439.29
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23D 0.95 1,067.60
(¢) Provisions 15 805.05 673.63
(d) Othernon-current liabilities 16 20.38 37.43
Total Non-current liabilities 5.852.84 8.090.33
2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 42,757.64 41,220.95
(ii) Lease liabilities 31 1,768.90 1,961.74
(iii) Trade payables
-Totaloutstanding dues to micro
enlerprises and small enterprises 36 110.22 11.56
-Totaloutstanding dues ofcreditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 36 3,405.66 2,441.01
(iv) Other financial liabilities 14 11,724 .30 7,23097
(b)Provisions 15 29.48 2572
(¢) Current tax liabilities 13.44 4915
(d) Other current liabilities 16 852.50 1.113.69
Total current liabilities 60,662.14 54.,054.79
Total liabilities 66,514.98 62,145.12
Total cquity and liabilities 77,605.50 75,912.90

M aterial accounting policies

1to 3

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 4 to 39

As perourreportofeven date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered
Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No, 117364W /W -100739

(ouehashes

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

—

Nishant Fadia
Director

DIN :- 02648177
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2024

Varsha A. Fadte
Partner Direcjor

Membership No. 103999 DIN # 02696897

Place: Panaji, Goa Place: Los Angeles, USA
Date: May 29,2024 Date: May 29,2024

Ramykrishnan Sankaranarayanan




Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Rs in lakh)
Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 2024 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 18 42,737.18 40,048.59
Other income 19 411.65 901.95
Total income 43,148.83 40,950.54
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 19,409.83 15,858.20
Employee stock option expense 29 261.55 1,065.73
Technical service cost 8,092.56 7,505.16
Finance costs 21 4,768.39 4,308.49
Depreciation and amortisation expense 45&6 8,896.11 8,861.68
Other expenditure 22 593772 5,743.03
Exchange loss/(gain) (net) 63.23 2.21
Total expenses 47,429.39 43,344.50
Loss before tax (4,280.56) 2,393.96)
Tax expense
Current tax 21.44 63.56
Deferred tax (credit) (1,058.13) (1.132.93)
23 (1,036.69) (1,069.37)

Loss for the year (3,243.87) (1,324.59)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurements of defined benefit plans (33.86) (41.50)

Income tax relating on above 852 10.45
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange difference in translating the financial

statements of foreign operations 330,40 1,029.25
Total other comprehensive income 305.06 998.20
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (2,938.81) (326.39)
Famings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- each 25
Basic (in rupees) (148.29) (60.99)
Diluted (in rupees) (148.29) (60.99)
Materal accounting policies Ito3

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 410 39

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants
LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Figyis RcTsuaIiDn No. 117364W/W-100739

— =
Varsha A. Fadte krishnan Sankaranarayanan
Partner Diyector

DIN :- 02696897
uce: Los Angeles, USA
ate: May 29,2024

DIN :- 02648177
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2024

Members hip No. 103999
Place: Panaji, Goa
Date: May 29,2024




Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

(Rs in lakh)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31,2022 217.16
Change in equity share capital during the year 1.60
Balance as at March 31,2023 218.76
Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31,2024 218.76

B. Other Equity

[Rs in lukh)
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Other Total
Compulsarily comprehensive
Securities Shiare options convertible income-Foreign
Premium General outstanding debentures currency
Reserve Reserwe nccount Retained earnings | translation reserve
Balance as at March 31,2022 4,438.76 1,.870.75 3.011.23 3.000.00 (2.203.07) 2,420.71 12.538.38
Loss for the year - - - - (1,324.59) - (1,324.59)
| Refated to employee stock options 27130 - 1,065.73 - - - 1,337.03
Dther comp ive income = - - - {31.05) 1.029.25 998.20
Balance as at March 31,2023 4,710.06 1.870.75 4.076.96 3.000.00 (3.558.71) 3.449.96 13.549.02
Loss for the year - - - - (3,243 87)| - (3,24387)
Related Lo employee stock options = 26155 - - - 261.55
Other comprehensive income - - - - (25 34); 33040 305 06
Balance as at March 31,2024 4,710.06 1,870.75 433351 3,000.00 {6,827.92) 3.780.36 10.871.76
Matenial accounting policics Ito3
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Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31,2024 (Rs in lakh)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flow from Operating activities
Loss before tax (4,280,56) (2,393.96)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 8,896.11 8,861.68
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 238
Sundry balance written off (298.57) -
Sundry credit balances written back (1.13) (1.16)
Provision for doubtful debts 43.62 (835.26)
Bad debts written off 126.49 899.70
Interest income (111.95) (158.26)
Government relief received - (610.36)
Finance cost 4,768.39 4,308.49
Employee stock options expense 261,55 1,065.73
Unrealised exchange difference 30.56 (435.45)
Operating profit before working capital changes 9,436.89 10,701.15
Changes in working capital :
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 1,136.39 (1,011.12)
Increase in trade and other receivables (4,680.35) (3,045.31)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 5,892.93 6,644.71
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (295.33) 260.40
Net cash flowgenerated from operating activities (A) 5.597.60 6,905.11
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase/development of Property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets (5,077.35)‘ (4,492.96)
Proceeds fromsale of Property, plant & equipment 129.95 -
Margin money and fixed deposits under lien 68.00 (180.91)
Interest received 23.03 13.91

Net cash flowused in investing activities (B) {4.856.37) (4,659.96)
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Consolidated Cash flowstatement for the year ended March 31,2024 (Rs in lakh)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds fromnon-cumrent borrowings (124.62) -
Proceeds from current borrowings 1,412.06 (1,471.00)
Proceeds fromissuance of shares - 272.90
Interest paid on borrowings (532.90) (430.32)
Interest paid on lease liability (671.76) (395.25)
Repayment of lease liability (1,228.80) (2,273.28)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (1,146.02) (4,296.95)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (404.79) (2,051.79)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,991.21 4.043.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 8.a) 1,586.42 1,991.21
Notes:
1) Components of cash and cash equivalents
a) Cash on hand 1.76 2,01
b) Balance in banks - current accounts 1,584.66 1.989.20
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 8a) 1,586.42 1.991.21
a. Disclosure as required by IND AS 7 are as follows:
Borrowing- Non Current 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening 872.38 1,562.39
Cash flow - -
Non cash movement (249.25) (690.01)
Closing 623.13 872.38
Borrowing- Current 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening 41,220.95 42,568.54
Cash flow 1,287.44 (1,471.00)
Non cash movement 249.25 123.41
Closing 42,757.64 41,220.95
Material accounting policies 1to3

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 4 to 39
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1. General information

Prime Focus Technologies Limited (‘the Company’ ‘the Parent Company’ ), [CIN-U72200MH2008PLC179850)
and all its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as 'Group') are engaged in the business of providing digital
technological solutions to the sports, film, broadcast, advertising and media industries. Prime Focus Limited is the
Holding Company (‘the Holding Company’). The address of the Company’s registered office is Prime Focus
Technologies Limited, True North, Plot no 63, Road No 13, Opp. Hotel Tunga Paradise MIDC, Andheri (East),
Mumbai — 400093, India.

1.1 Subsidiaries of the Group
The consolidated financial statements relate to Prime Focus Technologies Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries as listed below:

Name of subsidiaries | Principal activity Country of Current year Previous period
incorporation percentage of percentage of
holding holding
Prime Focus Digital Asset England & Wales
Technologies UK Management 100% 100%
Limited
Prime F9cus Post ProFiuction UsaA 100% 100%
Technologies Inc. Services
Apptarix Mobilit Technology and India
ng)utions Pvt Ltg Software s%:)r/vices 100% Rk
Prime Focus Technology and Singapore
Technologies PTE Software services 100% 100%
Limited
Subsidiary Company of Prime Focus Technologies Inc.
DAX Cloud ULC [ Pre-production | Canada | 100% [ 100%
Subsidiary Company of Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited
Prime P.ost. (Europe) |Content mgnagement England & Wales 100% 100%
Limited services

Prime Focus MEAD FZ LLC, based in Abu Dhabi, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Prime Focus Technologies UK
Limited. On April 19, 2020, the company filed for dormancy. Since then, there have been no business transactions
conducted by Prime Focus MEAD FZ LLC. On June 16, 2023, the authorities granted approval for the dissolution
of the company.

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein after
referred to as ‘Ind AS’) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

2.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind
AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date;

¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification
of assets and liabilities.

Group’s financial statements are presented in India Rupees () which is the functional currency of the Company.
All the figures are rounded off to the nearest lakhs except as otherwise indicated.

2.3 Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income
and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to this estimates and
the difference between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are
known/materialise.

24 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

« has power over the investee;

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls, an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s
voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give its power, including:

» the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

* potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

» any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year/ period are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the date the Company
gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if the results in the non-controlling interests have a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.4.1 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair-value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received an the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified / permitted by applicable
Ind AS). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

2.5 Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquirec or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see note 2.12); and

» assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

\e
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In case of a bargain purchase, before recognising a gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether there
exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase.
Thereafter, the Group reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The Group then
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purpose of calculating the bargain
purchase. If the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the Group recognises it in other comprehensive
income and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. This gain is attributed to the acquirer. If there does
not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase,
the Group recognises the gain, after reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital
reserve.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the Group’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at the fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another Ind AS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustment depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is re-
measured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income and reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

2.6 Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see note 2.5 above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units (or groups
of cash generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services. Revenue
is shown net of applicable taxes.

2.7.1 Rendering of services

The Group provides a variety of digital technological solutions to the sports, film, broadcast, advertising and media
industries.

Revenue from technical services, including creative services, is recognised on the basis of services rendered.
Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and the revenues from
the end of the last billing to the balance sheet date are recognized as unbilled revenues. Revenue from services
provided under fixed price contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is recognized following the
percentage of completion method, where revenue is recognized in proportion to the progress of the contract activity.
The progress of the contract activity is usually determined as a proportion of hours spent/ units processed up to the
balance sheet date, which bears to the total hours/units estimated for the contract. If losses are expected on contracts
these are recognized when such losses become evident.

Unbilled revenue is included within ‘other financial assets’ and billing in advance is included as deferred revenue
in ‘other current liabilities’.

2.7.2 Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

2.7.3 Rental Income
The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note 2.8 below.

2.8 Leasing

The Group as a lessee

The Group enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings, plant and machinery & computer software. Such
arrangements are generally for a fixed period but may have extension or termination options. The Group assesses,
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease, at its inception. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to —use.

a) control the use of an identified asset,
b) obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and
c) direct the use of the identified asset

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with periods covered by
an option to extend the lease, where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

The Group at the commencement of the lease contract recognizes a Right-to-Use (RTU) asset at cost and
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term leases) and low-
value assets. For these short term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The cost of the right-to-use asset comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease
payments made at or before the inception date of the lease, plus any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives
received.
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Subsequently, the right-to-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The right-to-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-to-use asset. The estimated useful life of
right-to-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.

The Group applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether an RTU asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss. Refer 2.16 below.

For lease liabilities at the commencement of the lease, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, if that rate is not readily determined, the lease payments
are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow funds, including
the consideration of factors such as the nature of the asset and location, collateral, market terms and conditions,
as applicable in a similar economic environment.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made.

The Group recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-to-use
assets, Where the carrying amount of the right-to-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in
the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss.

Lease liability payments are classified as cash used in financing activities in the statement of cash flows.
2.9 Foreign currencies transactions and translations

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for further productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings;

» exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment
of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupees using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates for the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (and
attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisitions of
a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
2.11 Employee benefits

2.11.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes on the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on
plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past
service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

e Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

¢ Net interest expense or income; and

e Re-measurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item "Employee
benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

A liability for termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when the Group recognises any related restructuring costs.
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2,112 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees’
upto the reporting date.

2.12 Share-based payment arrangements

2.12.1 Share-based payment transactions of the Group

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date., Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-
settled share-based transactions are set out in Note 29.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is amortised over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
employee benefits reserve.

2.13 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

2.13.1 Current tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in
the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.13.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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2.13.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are related to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

2.14 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and depreciation

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition or construction. They are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standards of performance. All other expenses on existing
PPE, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values using the straight-line method over their useful lives estimated by
Management, which are similar to useful life prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Cost of Leasehold improvements is amortised over a period of lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.15 Intangible assets and amortisations

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are
amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic lives.

Software
Software acquired by the Group are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of six years.
Internally generated intangible assets are amortised over a period of six to twenty years.

2.151 Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounting for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

¥
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2.15.2 Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

s the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

» how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it
is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are separately acquired.

2.153 Intangible assets acquired in a business combinations

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regard as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Finite-lived intangible assets that were acquired in a business combination, i.e. Software are amortised on a straight-
line basis over a period of 6 years.

The period of amortisation only starts at the point at which the assets becomes available to produce economic
returns.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the assets may be impaired.

2.154 De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is de-
recognised.

2.16 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest of the cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.17 Provisions & contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flow (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

2.17.1 Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract
is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

2.17.2 Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue.

2.18 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.
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2.19 Financial assets

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or de-recognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

2.19.1 Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt
instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer note 2.19.5

Debt instruments that meets the following conditions are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (except for debt ihstruments that are designed as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) debt
instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are
treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated is
reclassified to profit or loss.

For the impairment policy on debt instruments at FVTOCI, refer Note 2.19.5
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
2.19.2 Effective interest method

The effective interest is a method of calculating the amortised cost of debt instruments and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
applicable, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item.

2.19.3 Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present
the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments.
This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

\
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A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company has right
to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of
dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included in the *Other income’ line
item.

2.194 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Invesiments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity
instruments which are not held for trading (see note 2.19.3 above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated
as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FTPL upon initial measurement if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains and losses on them on different basis. The Group has not designated any debt instruments at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

2.19.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive
cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected
credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses that represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will
result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are
predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Group measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the
previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Group again
measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.
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When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead
of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has
used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based
on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt
instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not
reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

2.19.6 De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
the amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On de-recognition of financial asset other than its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part
of the a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part
it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or losses if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal
of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the
part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair value
of those parts.

2.19.7 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the sport rate at the end of each reporting period.

e For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange
ditferences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a
hedging relationship.

e Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

e For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as
financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive

income. \
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2.20 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

2.20.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability and equity
instrument.

2.20.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an Group after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Group’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

2.20.3 Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Group are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate
for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using
the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of
income tax effects, and is not subsequently re-measured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.

2.204 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de-recognition or
when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, and
commitments issued by the Group to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with
the specific accounting policies set out below.

2.20.4.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognised by the Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or held for trading
or it is designated as at FVTPL.
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A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by the
Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the Ind AS 109 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for not-held-for-trading financial liabilities that liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes create mismatch in
profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected
immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified in profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Group that are designated by
the Group as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

2.20.4.2 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.20.4.3 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and
e The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.
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2.20.4.4 Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and
e the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

2.20.4.5 Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of tinancial liabilitics denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL,
the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.20.4.6 De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange between a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of a debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

2.21 Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or foss immediately.

2.21.1 Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non- derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

2.22 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set and the net amount is presented when and only when, the Group
has legally enforceable right to setoff the amount it intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.23 Cash & cash equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks,
which can be withdrawn at any time, without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank
balances, demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
considered part of the Groups’s cash management system. In the balance sheet, bank overdraft are presented under
borrowings within current financial liabilities.
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2.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performances of the operating segments of the Group.

2.25 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period, the impact of such event is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the
balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Group
is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experiences and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

3.1.1 Revenue recognition

The revenue recognised on fixed price contracts is dependent on the estimated percentage of completion at a point
in time, which is calculated on the basis of the man hours/units of work performed as a percentage of the estimated
total man hours/units to complete a contract. The actual man hours/units and estimated man hours/units to complete
a contract are updated on a monthly basis.

The estimated man hours/units remaining to complete a project are judgemental in nature and are estimated by
experienced staff using their knowledge of the time necessary to the work.

If a contract is expected to be loss making, based on estimated costs to complete, the expected loss is recognised
immediately.

3.1.2 Taxation

The Group makes estimates in respect of tax liabilities and tax assets. Full provision is made for deferred and current
taxation at the rates of tax prevailing at the year-end unless future rates have been substantively enacted. These
calculations represent our best estimate of the costs that will be incurred and recovered but actuals may differ from
the estimates made and therefore affect future financial results. The effects would be recognised in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Deferred tax assets arise in respect of unutilised losses and other timing differences to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised or to the extent they can be offset
against related deferred tax liabilities. In assessing recoverability, estimation is made of the future forecasts of
taxable profit. If these forecast profits do not materialise, they change, or there are changes in tax rates or to the
period over which the losses or timing differences might be recognised, then the value of deferred tax assets will
need to be revised in a future period.

The Group has losses and other timing differences for which no value has been recognised for deferred tax purposes
in this consolidated financial statements. This situation can arise where the future economic benefit of these timing
differences is estimated to be not probable. It can also arise where the timing differences are of such a nature that
their value is dependent on only certain types of profit being earned, such as capital profits. If trading or other
appropriate profits are earned in future, these losses and other timing differences may yield benefit to the Group in
the form of a reduced tax charge.
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The major tax jurisdictions for the Group are India, United States of America, United Kingdom and Singapore.
Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether
tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues,
which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

3.14 Impairment of goodwill

Determining, whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The management
concluded that no adjustment to goodwill was required as at the balance sheet date.

3.1.5 Depreciation/amortisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into account
their estimated residual value. Intangible assets are amortised over its estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of all such assets at the end of each reporting period. There has been no requirement to
revise to useful lives of any such assets as at the Balance Sheet date.

3.1.6 Fair value measurements and valuation process

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. Further, the
Group has used valuation experts for the purpose of ascertaining fair value for certain assets and liabilities. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent that it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The Chief Financial Officer works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the valuation findings to the
Board of Directors of the Group to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

3.1.7 Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impairment provision of financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default and expected timing of
collection. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market condition as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

3.1.8 Provision

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of tunds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The
timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts
and circumstances.

3.1.9 Defined benefit obligations

The costs of providing other post-employment benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits” over the period during which benefits is derived from the
employees’ services and is determined based on valuation carried out by independent actuary. The costs are
determined based on assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include salary escalation rate,
discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to change in these assumptions.
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3.1.10 Recoverability of internally generated intangible asset

The Group develops intangible assets internally to assist its business plans and outlook. The Group capitalises
various costs, including employee costs, incurred in such development activities. Selection of the intangible asset
eligible for capitalisation, identification of the expenses that are directly attributable and reasonably allocable to
development of intangible assets involves significant management judgement. Further, the Group considers
recoverability of the Group’s internally generated intangible assets as at the end of each reporting period. Detailed
analysis was carried out by the management as at March 31, 2023 regarding recoverability of its internally generated
intangible assets.

3.1.11 Leases

Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has the right to use an underlying
asset including optional periods, when an Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend (or not to
terminale) a lease. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
for the lessee to exercise the option when determining the lease term. The option to extend the lease term is included
in the lease term, if it is reasonably certain that the lessee would exercise the option. The Company reassesses the
option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the control of the lessee.
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4 Property, plant sl equipment
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Rs. in lakh
Particulars Software
Gross block
As at April 01, 2022 61,711.80
Additions 2,708.50
Deductions -
Transferred from RTU software on closure of lease -
Exchange differences 772.53
As at March 31,2023 65,192.83
Amortisation
As at April 01, 2022 28,797.86
For the year 5,800.17
Deductions -
Transferred from RTU software on closure of lease -
Exchange differences 468.00
As at March 31,2023 35,066.03
Net block
As at March 31,2023 30,126.80
Particulars Software
Gross block
As at April 01, 2023 65,192.83
Additions 5.282.75
Deductions =
Transferred from RTU software on closure of lease 18.83
Exchange differences (128.89)
As at March 31,2024 70,365.52
Amortisation
As at April 01, 2023 35,066.03
For the year 5,584.11
Deductions B
Transferred from RTU sofiware on closure of lease 10.59
Exchange differences (138.94)
As at March 31,2024 40,521.79
Net block
As at March 31,2024 29,843.73

Notes:

5a. Goodwill:

The Group has a goodwill aggregating to Rs.13,973.80 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 13,717.62 lakhs) as on the

balance sheet date.

Prime Focus Technologies Inc. acquired DAX business of Sample Digital Holdings, LLC a California limited
liability company on April 4, 2014 and Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited, acquired Prime Post (Europe)

Limited on October 1, 2014 which resulted in this goodwill.
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The recoverable amount for these cash-generating units (CGU) is determined on a value in use calculation which
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets prepared by the management.

Following key assumptions were considered while performing impairment testing

Long term sustainable growth rates 5%
EBITDA Margins 17% to 22%
Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) after tax 14.90%

The projections cover a period of five years, as that is believed to be the most appropriate timescale over which to
review and consider annual performances before applying a fixed terminal value multiple to the final year cash
flows. The growth rates used to estimate future performance are based on the conservative estimates from past
performance. EBITDA margins are based on historical performance and Group’s strategies.

The management has performed sensitivity analysis around the base assumptions and have concluded that no
reasonable changes in key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the CGUs to be less than the carrying

value.

Based on the value in use computations, no impairment provision was considered necessary.

6. Right-to-use assets

Rs.in lakh
Right -to- use Right -to- use Right -to- use Total
Plant & Software Buildings
Particulars Machinery
Gross block
As at April 01, 2022 3.830.26 235.42 3,639.72 7.705.40
Additions - - 5.350.55 5.350.55
Trans ferred to PPE on closure of lease (80.04) - - (80.04)
Exchange differences 98.16 - 15.02 113.18
As at March 31,2023 3,848.38 23542 9.005.29 13.089.09
Amortisation
As at April 01,2022 2,219.53 44.63 2.531.68 4,795.84
FFor the year 603.00 25.24 82532 1453.56
Transferred to PPE on closure of lease (72.10) - - (72.10)
Exchange differences 78.29 - 6.22 84.51
As at March 31,2023 2.828.71 69.87 3.363.22 6,261.80
Net block
As at March 31,2023 1,019.67 165.55 5.642.07 6.827.29
Right -to- use Right -to- use Right -to- use Total
Plant & Software Buildings

Particulars Machinery
Gross block
As at April 01, 2023 3.848.38 23542 9,005.29 13,089.09
Additions 598.93 - - 598.93
Transferred to PPE on closure of lease (166.76) (18.83) - (185.59)
Exchange differences 92.30 - 23.15 115.45
As at March 31,2024 4,372.85 216.59 9,028.44 13,617.88
Amortisation
As at April 01,2023 2,828.71 69.87 3.363.22 6.261.80
For the year 682.32 26.95 1.104.36 1,813.63
Deletions 165.67 165.67
Transferred to PPE on closure of lease (138.86) (10.59) . (149.45)
Exchange differences 67.00 - 7.96 74.96
As at March 31,2024 3,604.84 86.23 4,475.54 8,166.61
Net block
As at March 31,2024 768.01 130.36 4,552.90 5,451.27
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7. Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Current
Trade receivables 6,566.61 7,702.33
Less: Loss allowances (215.85) (185.77)
Total 6,350.76 7.516.56
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
The movement in allowance for doubtful receivables is as
follows:
Balance as at the beginning of the year 185.77 997.64
Movement during the year (net) (including foreign currency
tranlation differences) 30.08 (811.87)
Balance as at the end of the year 215.85 185.77
The Group has used the practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the
ageing of the days the receivable are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix.
Tracke receividies = ageing andotler details
Unebsputesd triske receivalies Disputed truk receivabies-
March 31,2024 Considered good m:ii':::f:::{::‘r Creditimprired Coasidered pood m'::;:‘m'm d"r:‘"':' Crodit impuired
Less Hun 6 nonths 364092
G nonths - 1 vear 651 88
1-2vyear B -
2.4y x4 W
More thian 3y cars - 17603
Total 635,76 21585
Tk focvivabies - apeing wnl other details
niisputed trak: reccivalies Disjuted truie reccivales-
Bhrchd1, 2020 Coasidered good mﬂ'::‘::f::ﬁ::: Credil impraired Considered goud m‘:};z:‘::ﬂ"ﬁ:':: Credit imyuired
Less (1wl 6 nonths GARER -
Guonhs - | vear AL -
1=2veu 678 287
-3y L] 4266
Moee Uum 3 yeans 136 68 11321 -
ﬂ 751656 185.77 =
8. Cash and bank balances
(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
a. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.76 2.01
Bank balances
In current Accounts 1,584.66 1,989.20
Total 1,586.42 1,991.21
b. Balances other than (a) above
Other bank balances
In deposits* 291.06 359.06
Total 291.06 359.06
* Margin monies- fixed deposit accounts represent deposits with maturity ranging from 1 month to 60 months.
These deposits are pledged as security against non-fund based credit facilities availed by the Group.
9.  Other financial assets (Unsecured, conisdered good)

(Rs in Iakh)

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Non-current
Deposits 636.09 628.82
Total 636.09 628.82
Current
Deposits 130.35 128.42
Unbilled revenue 8,915.03 3,541.62
Interest accrued on deposits 32.92 19.26
Advance to related parties (Refer note 30) 59.31 -
Total 9.137.61 3.689.30
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10. Other Assets (Unsecured, considered good)

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Non-current
Capital advances 209.69 5.44
Prepaid expenses 1.75 4.28
Total 211.44 9.72
Current
Other loans and advances 1,609.53 1.594.34
Prepaid expenses 1,086.37 839.78
Total 2,695.90 2,434.12
Other loans and advances includes loans and advances to employees and advances to suppliers.
11. Equity Share Capital
(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Authorised share capital:
50.00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 500.00 500.00
15,00,00,000 Preference shares of Rs. 1/- each 1.500.00 1,500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
21,87.583 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 218.76 218.76
Total 218.76 218.76
11.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outs tanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Fully xid equity shares
Year ended March 31,2024 Year ended March 31,2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,187,583 218.76 2,171,578 217.16
Add: Shares issued dunng the year - . 16,005 1.60
Balance as at the end of the year 2,187,583 218.76 2,187,583 218.76

11.2 Shares reserved for issuance under options

The Company has granted employee stock options under employee's stock options scheme. Each option entitles the holder to one equity share

ofRs. 10 each.

113 Details of shares held by each sharcholder holding more than 5%

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

Prime Focus Limited

1,601,466 | 73.21%

1.601.466 7321%

Mr. Ramaknshnan Sankaranarayanan

10.13%

221,602

221,602 10.13%

11.4 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share, The Company declares and pays dividend in INR
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

11.5 Shares held by promoters at the end

Promoter name

No of shares

% of total shares

% change during the

year

Prime Focus Limited

1,601,466 73.21%

0.00%

Shures held by promoters at the end

Promoter name

No of shares

% of total shares

% change during the

vear

Prime Focus Limited

1,601.466 73.21%

-0.54%
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12.

13.

Other equity
(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Sccurities premium
As per last balance sheet 4,710.06 4,438.76
Movement during the year - 27130
4,710.06 4,710.06
General Reserve
As per last balance sheet 1,870.75 1,870.75
Compulsorily convertible debentures
As per last balance sheet 3,000.00 3,000.00
Retained Earnings (Refer note (a) below)
As per last balance sheet (3.558.71) (2.203.07)
Movement during the year (3.269.21) (1.355.64)
(6,827.92) (3,558.71)
Share options outstanding account
As per last balance sheet 4,076.96 3,011.23
Movement during the year 261.55 1,065.73
4,338.51 4,076.96
Other comprehensive income (Foreign currency translation
rescrve)
As per last balance sheet 3.449.96 2,420.71
Movement during the year 330.40 1,029.25
3,780.36 3.449.96
Total 10,871.76 13,549.02

a. Includes Re measurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax), loss of Rs.25.34 lakhs (March 31,

2023: loss of Rs. 31.05 lakh).

Borrowings (Non - Current)

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

Term loans (Unsecured)

from bank 623.13 872.38
(Refernote a below)
Total 623.13 872.38

a. During an earlier year, the Company was granted a Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL) facility
at an interest rate based on one year MCLR + | subject to cap of 9.25%. This facility is repayable in 48
instalments after completion of moratorium of 24 months. This facility is secured by exclusive charge over
present and future current assets and movable fixed assets, personal guarantees of promoter of the Holding
company, pledge of 35% shares of the Company held by the Holding company, Corporate Guarantee of
Holding Company, exclusive charge by way of mortgage of immovable properties, pledge of 30% shares of
subsidiaries viz; Prime Focus Technologies Inc., DAX LLC, Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited, Prime
Post Europe Limited. At the year-end, outstanding loan amount is Rs. 872.38 lakh, (Current maturity is
Rs.249.25 lakhs & Non-current is Rs.623.13 lakhs). As at March 31, 2023 Rs. 997 lakh, (Current maturity

is Rs.124.62 lakhs & Non-current is Rs.872.38 lakhs).
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"14.  Other Financial liabilities (Current)

(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

Non convertible redeemable preference shares - 387.37
(Refer note (14.a))
Accrued salaries and benefits 2,272.85 1,929.74
Interest accrued 31.22 164.76
Capital Creditors 1,150.93 129.10
Interest payable to group companies (Refer note 30) 8,269.30 4,620.00
Total 11,724.30 7,230.97

a. Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares have been redeemed on July 31, 2023, Refer note 32.

b. There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125
of the Companies Act, 2013 as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil)

"15. Provisions

(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 27) 699.35 580.35
Provision for compensated absences 105.70 93.28
Total 805.05 673.63
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 27) 19.16 16.15
Provision for compensated absences 10.32 9.57
Total 29.48 25.72

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which any provision was

required for any material foreseeable losses.

16. Other liabilities

(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

Non-Current
Deferred rent 20.38 3743
Total 20.38 37.43
Current
Deposit received from customers 38.08 38.08
Deferred revenue 63.00 260.18
Advance from customers 29.91 66.66
Other payables* 721,51 748.77
Total 852.50 1,113.69

*QOther payables include statutory tax liabilities, goods and service tax and employer & employee contribution

to provident fund and other funds liabitity.

7. Borrowings (Current)

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

From Banks/ Others (Secured)

Cash credit/ overdraft (Refer note (a) below)

1,079.05

Working Capital Demand Loan

2.450.00 =

(Refer note (b) below)

From Others (Unsecured)

Loan fromrelated parties

40,058.39

40,017.28

(Refer note {c) below and 30)

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Term loans (Unsecured)

from bank

249.25

124.62

(Refer note (13.a)

Total

42,757.64

41,220.95
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a.  The Company has availed a cash credit facility from bank. This facility are secured by first and exclusive
charge on all existing and future current assets and all existing and future movable fixed assets except
financed through equipment loan/lease pari-passu with term loans. The above facilities are further
secured by corporate guarantee issued by Holding Company and personal guarantee of promoters. Refer
note 13(a) for securities details of facilities outstanding as at March 31, 2024. The rate of interest for
cash credit / overdraft is based on 6 months MCLR + 2.65% with a reset on half-yearly basis.

b.  During the year, the Company has availed a working capital demand loan facility from bank. This facility
was secured by first and exclusive charge on all existing and future current assets and all existing and
future movable fixed assets except financed through equipment loan/lease pari-passu with term loans.
The above facility was further secured by corporate guarantee issued by Holding Company and personal
guarantee of promoters. Refer note 13(a) for securities details of facilities outstanding as at March 31,
2024. The rate of interest for working capital demand loan facility is at 11.75% with tenure of 91 days.

Interest rate on loan from related party ranges from 5% p.a. to 12% p.a.
p

"18.  Revenue from operations
(Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Income fromservices 42.737.18 40,048.59
Total 42,737.18 40,048.59
*19.  Other income
(Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Interest income:
bank deposits 36.69 24.44
on income taxrefunds 48.88 85.82
on others 24.00 48.00
Net gain on sale of property. plant and equipment 2.38 -
Sundry credit balances written back (net) 1.13 1.16
Govemment relief - 610.36
Miscellaneous income 298.57 132,17
Total 411.65 901.95
20. Employee benefits expense
(Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Salaries and wages 18,135.65 14,753.59
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 837.03 698.87
Gratuity (Refer note 27) 158.06 168.69
Staff welfare expenses 279.09 237.05
Total 19,409.83 15.858.20
1. Finance cost
(Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Interest on term loan 89.06 93.93
Interest on lease liability 671.76 395.25
Interest on working capital loans 257.17 62.88
Interest on loan fromrelated parties (Refer note 30) 3.669.69 3,618.69
Interest on others 7.26 3.67
Finance charges 73.45 74.07
Change in fair value of financial liabilities (Refer note 32) - 60.00
Total 4,768.39 4.308.49
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2.

Other expenditure

(Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Rent 843.74 833.52
Communication cost 384.40 544.36
Consumable stores 157.46 415.88
Electricity expense 569.18 504.50
Legal and Professional fees (refer note 862,58 769.28
Rates and taxes 42.96 70.33
Traveling and conveyance 584.80 433.05
Repairs and maintenance 1.120.99 1,116.09
Director's sitting fees 3.20 3.20
Insurance cost 149.53 141.18
House keeping expenses 219.80 191.65
Sales promotion expenses 656.21 333.55
Bad debt written off 126.49 899.70
Provision for doubtful debts 43.62 (835.26)
Management fees 33.07 53.41
Miscellaneous expenses* 139.69 268.59
Total 5,937.72 5,743.03
Note:
Payment to auditors (exclusive of service tax/goods and services tax (Rs in lakh)
Audit fees 33.03 27.03
In other matters 1.43 0.75
Out of pocket expenses 0.21 0.20
Total 34.67 27.98

*Miscellaneous expense includes office expenses, storage, membership & subscription and security charges,

freight and clearing charge, etc.

\.




Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements

23. Income tax

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

(Rs in lakh
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Current tax
- in respect of current vear 21.44 63.56
21.44 63.56
Deferred tax
- in respect of current year (1,058.13) (1,132.93)
(1,058.13) (1,132.93)
Total income tax expense recognised in the current (1,036.69) (1,069.37)
year
B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
(Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation 8.52 10.45
Tax recognised in other comprehensive income 8.52 1045

C. The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

(Rs in lakh)
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
% of PBT Amount % of PBT Amount
Loss before tax (4,280.56) (2,393.96)
Taxusing Company’s domestic taxrate 25.17% (1.077.42) 25.17% {602.56)
Effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 49237 505.42
Effect 'ofllov.velttax rates (Altemative Minimum Tax) in 116.64 (63.56)
other jurisdiction(s)
Effect of non recognition of deferred taxasset on
unused tax losses and taxoffsets related to the foreign (99.43) (423.57)
subsidiary companies
Others (468.86) (485.10)
Income tax credit recognised in Statement of profit and
loss (1,036.69) (1,069.37)

D. Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the consolidated balance sheet:

(R in lakh)
Recognisedin | R isedin . R isedin | R isedin
N::l:n; :,nioaz‘z Eeofitloss OClduring | o\ k3 1,azsoazta Erabtjioss OCl during N::Ic:":: :,8250?4
during 2022-23 2022-23 during 2023-24 2023-24
Deferred tax liahilities related to:
Difference between written down values of property,
planl & equipment and intangible assets as per books (6,221 56) {628 56) - (6,850.12) 890.97 - {5.959.15)
of account and Income taxact, 1961
Lease deposit discounting and equalisation 1270 965 - 2235 (6.04) - 1631
(6,.208.86) (618.91) - (6,827.77) 884.93 = (5.942.84)
Deferred tax assels velated to:
Provision for gratuily, compensated absences and 1465
bonus 150.93 10.45 176.03 25.50 852 21005
Unabsorbed loss carried forward 3.614.19 60611 - 4.220.30 33415 . 4.554 45
Provision for doubtful debts 30.86 15.90 - 46,76 757 - 5433
Lease liabilities 199.65 1.117.44 - 1.317.08 (194.02) - 1.123.06
Others 225 {225) - - - -
3.997.88 1.751.84 10.45 5.760.17 173.20 8.52 5941.89
Net deferred tax (liabilities) {2.210.98) 1.132.93 1045 {1.067.60) 1.058.13 8.52 (0.95)|

\
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E. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

The Group has carried forward losses in India against which deferred tax asset as disclosed below has not been
recognised in books.

(Rs in lakh)
As at As at
Particulars 31stMarch 2024 [31st March 2023
Unabsorbed business loss & depreciation 141.78 -

The Group has carried forward losses in United Kingdom and United States against which deferred tax asset has
not been recognised are as follows;

As At As At
Particulars March 31,2024 Will expire in FY March 31,2023
Unabsorbed business loss 7,468.96 2039-40 7.358.40
Unabsorbed business loss 4971.51 2039-40 4.897.92
Unabsorbed business loss 1,777.72 2038-39 1,844.47
Unabsorbed business loss 5,925.93 Indefinite 5.904.92

F. Tax losses carried forward
The Group has carried forward losses for India which are as disclosed below;

(Rs in lakh)

As at Will expire As at Will expire
Particulars 31st March 2024 in FY 31st March 2023 in FY
Unabsorbed business loss FY 2021-22 (A Y 2022-23) 2,082 2029-30 5,503 2029-30
Unabsorbed depreciation FY2016-17 (AY 2017-18) 362 | Indefinite life 362 | Indefinite life
Unabsorbed depreciation FY2017-18 (AY 2018-19) 2,048 Indefinite life 2.048 Indefinite life
Unabsorbed depreciation FY 2018-19 (AY 2019-20) 2,599 | Indefinite life 2,599 | Indefinite life
Unabsorbed depreciation FY 2019-20 (A'Y 2020-21) 1,804 | Indefinite life 1,804 | Indefinite life
Unabsorbed depreciation FY 2020-21 (A'Y 2021-22) 2,274 | Indefinite life 2,274 | Indefinite life
Unabsorbed depreciation FY 2021-22 (A Y 2022-23) 3.421 Indefinite life 3,421 Indefinite life
Unabsorbed depreciation FY 2022-23 (A'Y 2023-24) 2.256 Indefinite life 2.256 Indefinite life
Unabsorbed depreciation FY 2023-24 (AY 2024-25) 1.812 Indefinite life - NA

24. Segment information
Operating segments:

a. The segment information has been prepared in line with the review of operating results by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) of Group, Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan (Director).

b. The Group is presently operating as an integrated post-production setup, providing technological digital solutions
to its customers, which has been considered as representing a single operating segment.

Geographical information

The Group operates in four principal geographical areas — India (Country of Domicile), United Kingdom, United
States of America and other countries.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of customers and information about its non-current assets
by location of assets are detailed below:

"
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(Rs in lakh)
Sale of services Segment Non-current assets *
Year ended Year ended As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2024 March 31,2023
India 18,847.44 18,088.31 33,804.12 37.020.82
United Kingdom 11,679.89 9,239.10 6,422.16 5,839.59
United States of America 11,527.21 12.135.73 15,700.92 15,740.02
Other Countries 682.64 585.45 - -
Total 42,737.18 40,048.59 55,927.20 58,600.43

*Non-current assets exclude financial assets & tax assets.

Two customers contributes individually to more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended March
31, 2024 amounting to Rs. 15,764.05 lakhs (previous year- Two customer Rs. 15,556.71 lakhs).

25. Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Parent by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss)attributable to equity holders of the Parent by
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Polential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive when their conversion to ordinary shares would increase earnings per
share.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023

Net Loss after tax as per statement of profit and loss (A) Rupees in lakh (3,243.87) (1,324.59)
Opening number of Equity Shares Number 2,187.583 2,171,578
Shares issued during the year Number - 16,005
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS (B) [Number 2,187,583 2.171,797
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (C) | Number 2,187,583 2,171,797
Basic earnings per share (A/B) Rupees (148.29) (60.99)
Diluted earnings per share (A/C) Rupees (148.29) (60.99)

26. Statement of net assets, net profit / loss after tax and other comprehensive income attributable to
owners

Current year

(Rs in Inkh)
Net Assets Share in Profit/ (loss) Share in Other compwehensive | Share in Total Conyrehensive
SrNo Narme of enti as % of consol as % of as % of consol as % of ¢
¥ net assets LT N L profit/ lass G T p:ﬁotf/ ll::slssoI Amount
mrofit/ loss
|| Prime Focus Technologies Limted 138% 1524979 118% (3.824.07)| -8%% (2534) 131% (3.84941)
2| Prine Focus Technologies UK Linited -2 (273.62) -81%| 262132 % - 3P 262132
3{Prire Focus Technologies. Inc -1% (110.09) -12% IBE 0% (0.00) -14% 39862
4 Priire Post Europe Limited 1% (15839 0% (9.13) 0| - 12 9.13)
5|DAX Qoud ULC 2% (20822) 0% 701 (V2 - 2% 701
6{Prime Focus Technologies PTELtd -1% (154.18)] % (186.99) el - SP4 (18699
7| Apptarix Mobility Solutions Pvt Ltd. [ (8.77)] O 1.10 Pl - [ 110
129% 14336.52 3% (992.14), 8% (2534) 35% (1,017.48)
Add/(Less): Hiects of Inter Corrpany

adjustirents / elimnations =29 (3.246.00)] 6%l (2,251.73) 108% 33040 0% (1,921 33)

100% 11,090.52 100% (3.243.87)| 100% 305.06 100% (2.938.81

L
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Previous year

(s in fakh)
[ l Net Assets Share in Profit/ (lss Share in Other comprehensive | Share in Total Comprehensive
. a as % of
Sr No Name of entity as % of consol R ot consal Amount as % of consal Amount |™ % of consol Amount
net assets profit/loss profit/ less
mofit/ loss
1{Prime Focus Technologies Limited 1372} 1883765 By (316721 3% (3105 950 (3,198,
2 Prme: Foeus Technologies LI Limited =13% (173492 35% (45947 P4 - 1419 (459.47)
3| Printe: Focus 'l‘mhrmlnhg- ,Ine. 4% (501.97 =115 1,511.54 5 C.01), ~405%4| 1,511.53
) Prime Post Burope Limited 1% (143 ) {0.95] [0 = O (0.95)
S|DAX Cloud ULC 7 @1231) 4 042 ] 2 - % 2042
6{Prime Focus MEAD FZ LLC 1894} 233452 £ (13874!1 [0 - 43% (13874)
7| Prine Focus Tnchnologws PTE Lid. (P 31.35 (B4 {7.43) W) - 2% {7.43)
8] ApptarixMobility Solutions Pvt. L1d % (9.87) [ (a10) 0%4) . 2 {0.10)]
135% 18,600.54 169% (2.241.94 3% (31.06 696% (2.273.00]
Add/(Less). Effects of Inter Corrpany
adjustments / chiminationsg -35% (4.832.76) G0 91735 10335 102926 =59 14661
100% 13,767.78 ] 100% (1.324.59) 100% 998.20 100% (326.39)
27. Employee Benefits
a. Defined contribution plans

The total amount recognised in profit or loss is Rs. 837.03 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 698.87 lakhs), which is
included in Note 20 ag ‘Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds’.

b. Defined benefit plans (Unfunded)

This plan typically expose the Group 1o actuarial risks such as; interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

[ Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability,

Longevity risk | The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the
best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.

credit method.

The Group contributes towards social security and Medicare, Liability in respect thereof is determined on the basis
ol contribution as required under the US State / Federal Rules. There is no further obligation of the Group beyond
the contributions made,

to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which these accrue. There is no further obligation of the Group
beyond the contributions made.

\o

liability.
Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
L increase the plan’s liability. _ ]
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L Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation:

{Rs in lakh’
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 596.50 512.75
Interest Cost 44.68 39.76
Current Service Cost 113.38 128.93
Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer (69.91) (126.43)
Actuarial (Gains )/Losses on Obligations-Due to change in demographic
assumptions -
Actuarial Losses on Obligations-Due to change in financial assumptions 25.32 (14.27)
Actuarial (Gains Y/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 8.54 55.77
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the vear 718.51 596.50
IIl. Expenses recognised in Statement of profit andloss during the year
{Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Curmrent Service Cost 113.38 128.93
Net Interest Cost 44.68 39,76
Expenses Recognized 158.06 168.69
HL Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
{Rs in lakh
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Actuarial gains on obligation for the year 33.86 41.50
Net expense/(income) for the vear recognized in OCI 33.86 41.50
Actuarial assumptions
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Rate of Discounting (per annum) 7.49% 7.49%
Rate of Salary Increase (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
For service 4 years and|For service 4 years and
below 10.00% p.a. For|below 10.00% p.a. For
service 5 years and above|service 5 years and above
Rate of Employee Tumover {(per annum) 2.00% p.a. 200%p.a
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality
Mortality Rate During Employment (2012-14) Urban (2012-14) Urban

1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of the Government of India bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the

estimated term of the obligations

2 The estimates ofrate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

IV. Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligations

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assurmptions, holding other assurmptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the

amounts shown below:

Murch 31, 2024 Muarch 31,2023
Increase in assumption | Decrease in assumption | Increaseinassumption | Decreasein assunmption
Discount rate (1% movement) (84.84) 101.89 (7.2} 8574
Future salary appreciation (1% movement) 9409 (81.25) 090 (69.20)
Attrition rate (1% movement) 2153 (A.77) 2124 (2475)]

\w .
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28. Financial instruments

A. Capital Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group management sets the amounts of capital required in proportion to risk. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the
underlying assets.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings (as detailed in note 13 and 17), offset by cash and bank
balances (note 8), and equity of the Group (comprising Equity share capital and other equity). The debt equity ratio
is 3.91 as on March 31, 2024 (3.07 as on March 31, 2023).

During the year, the Group’s strategy was to monitor and manage the use of funds whilst developing business
strategies and marketing.

B. Financial risk management

A wide range of risks may affect the Group’s business and financial results. Amongst other risks that could have
significant influence on the Company are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors manage and review the affairs of the Group by setting up short term and long-term budgets
by monitoring the same and taking suitable actions to minimise potential adverse effects on its operational and
financial performance.

C. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a client or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from clients and cash. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis.

The Group has a low credit risk in respect of its trade receivables, its principal customers being national broadcasters
and major organisations which the Group has worked with for a number of years. However, as the Group grows
its customer base and works with more independent producers it will experience an increased credit risk
environment, The Group is also exposed to credit risk in respect of its cash and seeks to minimise this risk by
holding funds on deposit with banks.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk was Rs. 16,124.46 lakh as at March 31, 2024 and Rs. 11,834.68 lakh as at March 31, 2023 being the total of
trade receivables, unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

Two customers contribute individually to more than 10% of outstanding trade receivables as at March 31, 2024
amounting to Rs. 2167.66 lakhs (P.Y. -Two customer- Rs. 2,943.60 lakhs) and four customers contribute
individually to more than 10% of unbilled revenue as that date amounting to Rs. 6707.80 lakhs (P.Y. —three
customer - Rs. 1,973.93 lakhs).

o
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D. Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. The Group’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
Management monitors the Group’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash
flows. As at March 31, 2024, cash and cash equivalents are held with major banks and financial institutions.

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities. The following break up is based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For liability maturities more than 12 months, see also note 14
and 15.

(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2024

Less than 1 year

More than 1 year

Financial liablities

Borrowings 42,757.64 623.13
Lease liabilities 1,768.90 4,403.33
Other financial liabilities 11,724.30 -
Trade payables 3,515.88 -
Total 59,766.72 5,026.46

As at March 31,2023

Less than 1 year

More than 1 year

Financial liablities

Bormrowings 41,220.95 872.38
Lease liabilities 1,961.74 5,439.29
Other financial liabilities 7.230.97 -
Trade payables 2.452.57 -
Total 52,866.23 6,311.67
E. Market risk

The primary market risks to which the Group is exposed are foreign currency and interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk management

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Group operates, its operations are subject to
risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate to fluctuations in US
Dollar, Euro, Great Britain Pound, Australian Dollar, Singapore Dollar and Canadian dollar against the respective
functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The following analysis has been worked out based on the net foreign currency exposures as of the date of Balance
sheet which could affect the statement of profit and loss and equity.

\.
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The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:

Foreign currency As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Particulars
Denomination | Foreign currency Rs. In lakh Foreign currency Rs. In lakh
Financial assets USD 4316427 3.597.59 4,118,549 3,381.85
GBP 1,123.741 1,182.49 2,075,778 2.108.14
SGD 1,508 0.93 1,508 0.93
EUR 198,596 178.94 453,689 405.03
ZAR 3,136,808 138.53
Total 5,098.48 5,895.95
Financial Liabilities USD 8,462,497 7.053.20 271,006 222.53
GBP 5,194,384 5,465.95 818 0.83
SGD 4,229 2.61 2,095 1.29
AED - - 19,407 4.45
AUD 193 0.10 193 0.11
CAD - - 3.670 2.23
Total 12,521.86 231.44
Net exposure (7.423.38) 5,664.51

5% appreciation/ depreciation of respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Group
would result in decrease/ increase in the Group’s loss before tax by approximately Rs. 371.17 lakhs for the year
ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 283.23 lakhs). This sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
[oreign currency denominated monetary items.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because the Group borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates.
The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.
The sensitivity analysis for exposure to interest rates on borrowings as at the end of the reporting period indicates
that a 50 basis point increase in floating interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased equity and increase
loss for the year by Rs. 216.90 lakhs for March 31, 2024 and Rs. 210.47 lakhs for March 31, 2023 and a 50 basis
point decrease in floating interest rates at the reporting date would have increased equity and decreased loss by the
same amount respectively.

\
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F. Fair value measurements

Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the fair values of financial assets and fi

value hierarchy.

nancial liabilities, inéluding their levels in fair

Rs. inlakh
Carrying Value Fair Value —[
Particulars As at As at As at March 31, | As at March 31,| Fair value
Murch31,2024 | Murch 31 22023 2023 2023 lilerarchy
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial sssets measured af ammortised cost
Trude receivables 6.350.76 7.516.56 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,586.42 1.991.21 -
Other balances with Banks 291.06 359.06 -
Other financial assels 9,773,790 4318.12 -
18,001.94 14,184.95 -
FINANCIAL LIABLITIES
Financial linbities measured st fair value
Non convertible redeemnable preference shares
NCRPS) - 387.37 38737 |Level 3

Financiol linblities mensured st nmortised cosi
Bomowings 4338077 4209333
Lease liabilities 6,17223 7401.03
Other financial liablities 11,724.30 6,843.60
Trade pavables 351588 2435257

64.793.18 59.177.90

Fair value s nt Fair value as at Rs, in lnkh
Valuation Significant Relations hips of
(Financial Assets) As at As at Fuir Value techniques and |unobservable unolservble
il Linbilities March 31,2024 | March 31 + 2023 [ Hirernchy key inputs inputs inputs to fir value
- 38737 | Level 3 Discounted cash|Discount rate The higher the
flow method was |and probable [expected payout,
used o capture [cash flow the higher the fair
present value valse The Higher
the discount rale,
lower the fair value
l_ - 387.37
Reconciliation oflevel 3 fair values
E Rs. in lakh
Closing alance as at Mareh 31,2022 (Financial Liabilities 327.37
Change in fiur valie of NCRPS G0.00
Clasing alince as nt March 31,2023 (Financinl Linkilities 38737
Change in fair value of NCRPS -
Redemption (including write back of excess liabilit (387.37)

Closing balance ns at March 31,2024 (Financinl Liubilities)
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29. Share based payments

The Company has granted employee stock options under employee’s stock options scheme. Each option entitles
the holder to one equity share of Rs. 10 each. 188,551 options were outstanding as at March 31, 2024 (Previous
year 258,920). Nil options (Previous year 15,500) were granted during the year. Such options entitle the holders
to one equity share of Rs. 10/- for each option granted with vesting period of 1 to 3 years, exercise period of 5
years and exercise price of Rs. 2,475/-. From options granted, 20,295 options were vested during the year

(Previous year 104,388).

The current status of the stock options granted to the Employees is as under:

exercise price

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Numbers of Weighted Numbers of Weighted
options average options average

exercise price

QOutstanding at the beginning of the year 258,920 2,310 275,475 2,062
Granted during the year - - 15,500 1,909
Lapsed/ forfeited during the year 16,378 2,089 13,106 819
Expired during the year 53,991 2,784 2,944 235
Exercised during the year - - 16,005 1,705
Outstanding at the end of the year 188,551 2,194 258,920 2,310
Exercisable at the end of the year 163,490 2,475 184,376 2,416

For stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2024 the range of exercise price is Rs. 1,650 to Rs. 3,987 and

weighted average remaining contractual life is 5 years and vesting period of | to 3 years

Nil options were granted during the year.

The Company has followed the fair value method to account for the grant of stock options and charge for the year
ended March 31, 2024 is Rs. 261.55 lakh (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,065.73 lakh)

W
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30. Related party transactions
(i) Listof parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
A) Holding Company (Control exists)
Prime Focus Limited

B) Fellow S ubsidiaries
Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services, Inc
Double Negative Limited UK
DNEG North America Inc,
DNEG India Media Services Limited
DNEGPLC
Double Negative India Private Limited
JAMS Prime Focus LLP
Prime Focus Intemational Services UK Limited
De-FiMedia Limited
Prime Focus North America Inc
PF World Ltd, (Mauritius)

C) Key Management Personnel

Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan- Whole Time Director

D) Key Management Pers onnel of Holding Company
Mr. Naresh Malhotra

i) Key Management Personnel *

Rs. in lakh
r Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Remuneration
Bamakrishnan Sankaranarayanan 361.13 324.48
Rs. in lakh

’— As at As at ’

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Balance Outstanding at the year end— Remuneration Payable
8.84 J

Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan 13.53

\
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iii) Holding Company (HC)

iv)

Rs. in lakh
Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Technical Service charges - =
Interest expense 3,669.69 3,618.69
Loan taken 1,121.77 9,500.00
Loan repaid 1,271.77 12,285.00
Reimbursement of expenses (net) 121.76 121.00
Rs. in lakh
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Balance outstanding at the year end
Trade / other Payable (net) 89.90 77.33
Loan payable 29,921.70 30,073.85
Interest payable 7,667.25 4,026.92
Unbilled Revenue 0.60 -
Financial / performance gaurantee 3,497.00 3,900.00
Fellow Subsidiary companies
Rs. in lakh
Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Revenue
Double Negative India Private Limited - 0.50
Double Negative Limited UK 2,849.38 587.00
JAMS8 Prime Focus LLP 0.84 -
DNEGPLC - 1,081.75
Reimbursement of expenses (net)
Prime Focus North America Inc 227.23 143.90
Prime Focus Intemational Services UK Limited - 0.34
DNEG India Media Services Limited 10.90 -
Advances given
Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services, Inc. - 0.71
Repayment of loans taken
PF World Ltd. (Mauritius) - 435.54

\*
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Rs. in lakh
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Balance outstanding at the year end
Trade / other payables
DNEG India Media Services Limited 12.69 -
Prime Focus North America Inc 249.61 250.38
Trade / other receivables
Double Negative Limited UK - 262.84
DNEG India Media Services Limited 0.58 0.58
JAMS Prime Focus LLP 0.99 -
Unbilled Revenue
Double Negative Limited UK 2,403.15 64.42
DNEG PLC - 1,135.08
Interest payable
PF World Ltd. (Mauritius) 602.05 -
De-FiMedia Limited - 593.08
Loan payable
De-Fi Media Limited - 9,943.44
PF World Ltd. (Mauritius) 10,136.69 -
v)  Key Management Personnel of Holding Company
Rs. in lakh
Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Personal guarantee given by Naresh Malhotra 43,555.39 43,514.28

* The figures of Key management personnel do not include provisions for gratuity / other employee benefit
as separate actuarial valuation not available.

Under ESOP Scheme, Nil options were granted to Key management personnel in current year (previous year-
Nil).

The stock options outstanding for KMP’s as at March 31, 2024 is 27,050 and as at March 31, 2023 is 27,050
and employee stock option expense for the year March 31, 2024 is Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 46.60 lakh).

There is no provision for doubtful debt or amount written off or written back in respect of debts due from /

in respect of related parties.

31. Lease liabilities

a. Maturity profile of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024: Rs in lakh
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carrying Undiscounted Carrying Undiscounted
amount cash flow amount cash flow
Within one year 1,768.90 1,892.37 1,961.74 2,080.87
Later than one year and not later 4,028.41 4,895.83 4,969.44 6,010.93
than five years
Later than five years 374.92 740.02 469.85 927.39
Total 6,172.23 7,528.22 7,401.03 9,019.19

AW
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32.

On August 13, 2018, Comparny acquired 100% shar

technology product innovator. The business
agreement for cash consideration of Rs, 125,00 |
lakh,

During the vear, as per the
Solution Private Limited. The

liability over the fair value of
profit & loss for the year ended March 31, 2024.

33. Contingent liabilities & commitments

agreed terms. redemption of NCRPS wa
into the redemption and agreed pay-out amount to
fair value of NCRPS as on date of
consideration for NCRPS of Rs, 2

tering into a share purchase
onofupto Rs. 375.00 lakh in
The fair value of contingent

Rs. 124.98 lakh to the shareholders of Apptarix Mobility

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a. Capital Commitments 270.00 32.30
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for:
b. Contingent Liabilities Nil Nil
L )

34. Capitalisation of expenditure

a.

During the year, the Group has capitalised
asset under development (software), Consequently,
amounts capitalised by the Group.

the following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of intangible

expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of

Rs. in lakh
!@rticulars March 31, 2024 [March 31, 2023 |

Opening Balance 2,143.93 1,485.69
Add:

Employee Benefit expenses 2,683.37 2,559.45

Direct overheads 107.61 -

Exchange difference 6.70 34.69

2,797.68 2,594.14

Less: Capitalised 4.162.41 1,935.90

Closing Balance 779.19 2,143.93

b. Intangible Assets Under Development Aging Schedule

To be completed in
r 31-Mar-24 Less than [ yr 12 yrs B 2-3 yrs more than 3 yrs
Project 7 131.96 = = =
Project 8 538.88 = = -
Project 9 108.35 % = -
To be completed in
31-Mar-23 Less than 1 yr 1-2 yrs o 2-3 yrs more than 3 yrs
Project 5.b 334.93 - = =
Project 6 L074.12 : - -
Project 5.2 416.09 318.80 b j

ot

es of Apptarix Mobility Solution Private Limited, an OTT
acquisition was conducted by en
akh and contingent considerati
the form of Non-convertible redeemable preference shares (NCRPS).

consideration on the date of acquisition was Rs. 246.49 lakh. Total fair value of consideration was Rs, 371.49

s done on July 31. 2023 which resulted

redemption was Rs. 387.37 Lakh. The excess
62.39 lakhs was written back in statement of
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¢. The Company does not have any CWIP or IAUD, whose completion is overdue or hag exceeded its cost
compared to its original plan.

35. Events after the reporting period
There were no events after the reporting period which require adjustments in amounts recognised/disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

36. Trade Payables - ageing and other details Rs in lakh
Disputed | Disputed
As at dues- dues-
March 31,2024 MSME Others MSME others
Provisions - 640.14 - -
Not due 110.22 381.10 - -
less than 1 year - 2315.75 - -
1to 2 years - 21.70 - -
210 3 years - 34.94 - -
more than 3 years - 12.03 - -
Total 110.22 3,405.66 - =
r Disputed | Dis puted
As at dues- dues-
March 31,2023 MSME Others MSME others
Provisions - 453.42 - -
Not due 11.56 546.81 - -
less than 1 year - 1.316.88 - -
110 2 years - 59.86 - -
2to 3 years ) - 45.51 - -
more than 3 years - 18.53 - -
Total 11.56 2,441.01 - -_I

37. Additional Regulatory Information
(i) Other information
a.  The Company and Indian subsidiary does not haye any benami property held in its name. No proceedings

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder,

b. The Company and Indian subsidiary has not been declared wi Iful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender or government or any government authority,

¢. The Company and Indjan subsidiary had no transactions with companies that are struck off under Section
248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956,

g Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium :

i The Company and Indjan subsidiary has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall:

- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
-Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

v
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(ii) The Company and Indian subsidiary has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), including
foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shall:

- Directly or indirect| y lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
h. The Company and Indian subsidiary does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be
registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

38. Figures for the corresponding year has been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary, to correspond with
current year classification disclosure,

39.  Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 29, 2024.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

—e

Rgmakrishnan Sankaranarayanan  Nifhant Fa ia

Djrector Director
IN :- 02696897 DIN :- 02648177
lace: Los Angeles, USA Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2024 Date: May 29,2024
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